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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY
PRIVATE LIMITED(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2019, and profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for Ind AS Financial

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statemen g @ true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including




other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial
statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements is Included in “Annexure A”. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2018 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as Other Matters as at 1 April, 2017 included in these
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 duly audited
and the report for the years ended 31 March, 2018 and 31 March, 2017has an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure B” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.




2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

(&) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanation with to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our Audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(¢) On the basis of the written Tepresentations received from the directors as on 31lst

Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure C”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company has long term contracts as on 31st March 2019, for which there
were no material foreseeable losses. The Company did not have derivative contracts.

iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For, VCA & ASSOCIATES

(Partner)
Membership No. : 048169

Place: Vadodara

Date:_lo*s/lay, 2019.



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to, under the heading ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of Ind AS Financial
Statement’ of our report of even date to the members of INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY
PRIVATE LIMITED on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.




including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

For, VCA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Account
FRN: 114414W

Membership No. : 048169

Place: Vadodara
Date:é")’l’\zlay, 2019.



“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the members of INDUTCH COMPOSITES
TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2019:

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased
manner, designed to cover all the items over g period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the
books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

2) The management conducts physical verification of inventory at regular interval, during the
year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification, were not material.

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and [86 of the Companies Act,
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with
regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities
carried on by the company.

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Good and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.




8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are following dues of
Income tax, outstanding on account of any dispute,

Name of the Nature of Dispute f Amount Period to | Forum where .
Statute

.

] which pending
Amount
| | relates
The Income [ TDS Penalty 16,.47,893  |AY2016-17
Tax Act,1961 | | | |
The Income | Regular { 23,58,360 ‘ AY 2014-15 ( CIT (A)
Tax Act, 1961 Assessment
The Income Regular ( 14,71,768 I AY 2016-17 ( CIT (A)
Tax Act, 1961 Assessment

taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the government and has not
issued any debentures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has raised money by way of Rights issue and Term Loan
during the year, and the amounts have been utilized/ earmarked for the purposes, as per
terms for which such amounts were raised, and the details have been disclosed in the Ind
AS Financial Statements.

officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Companies Act;

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance withsection177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given

by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

and hence not mented upon.
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15)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 JA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For, VCA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 114414w

CA. Ashgk Thakkar
(Partne
M.No: 048169

Place: Vadodara

Date:_b))May, 2019.



“Annexure C” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Refen:ed to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of oyr report of even date to the members of INDUTCH COMPOSITES
TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 3 1,2019;

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INDUTCH
COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A company's internal financia] control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have g material effect on the Ind AS financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of interna] financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion
In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls System over

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia] Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For VCA & ASSOCIATES_
Chartered Accoy ants
FRN: 114414W,

CA. ASHQW THAKKAR
(Partner)

Membership No. : 048169

Place: Vadodara
Dateﬁ’))May 2019,



\NDUTCH COMPOS!‘YES T
palance gheet as at

particulars

ASSETS

31st March, 2019

ECHNOLOGY pVT LTD.
31st Warch,2019

As at

315t March,

2018

1st April, 2017

{1) Non-Current Assets 72.99.951
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment i,zg,gi;,i;i 6,13,62,515 1,72, 4
(b) Capital work-in-progress DL,25, 5 =
(c) Intangible Assets 7 18,23,422 189,058 na
Financial Assets )
i [ii}n[a):pr?sits 8 3,13,30,407 | 2,60,19,686 71,81,000
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 43179!147_ 22,35331 m’gg’igz
(f) Other non-current assets 10 15,58,75,450 2,30,64,780 38,03,
Total non-current assets 33,46,03,453 11,28,51,404 2,98,30,997
(2) Current Assets
{a) Inventories 11 14,50,35,167 6,18,71,124 5,33,40,498
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 12 1,09,867 - %
(i) Trade receivables 13 16,06,76,215 17,51,16,803 7,29,29,854
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 7,23,94,693 1,10,57,933 4,028
{iv) Other Bank Balances 15 1,27,80,050 1,56,94,500 23,59,712
(v} Loans / Depaosits 16 45,59,058 48,85,072 30,50,051
(vi) Other Financial assets 17 3,77,495 6,03,777 35,777
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 18 i - 24,02,731
(d) Other current assets 19 57,43,618 52,79,070 57,49,091
Total current assets 40,16,76,163 | 27,45,08,278 13,98,71,742
Total assets 73,62,79,616 | 38,73,59,682 16,97,02,739
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 20 4,21,54,940 2,99,76,840 2,06,09,080
(b) Other Equity 21 32,94,77,066 | 4,89,62,116 1,11,05,629
Total equity 37,16,32,006 7,89,38,956 3,17,14,709
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 13,71,98,168 3,06,36,675 1,67,93,043
(i) Other Financial liabilities 23 1,61,04,554 1,98,36,329 -
(b) Provisions _ 24 1,46,86,368 56,82,488 24,78,784
Total non-current liabilities 16,79,89,090 5,61,55,492 1,92,71,827
{2) Current Liabilities
{2) Financial Liahilities
{i) Borrowings 25 - 1,91,69,709 2,21,81,419
(i) Trade payables 26
A) Due to Micro & Small enterprises 41,07,520 29,88,481 57,11,965
B) Due to Other than Micro & Small enterprises 15,25,83,914 | 10,41,25,377 4,97,66,456
(iii) Other Financial liabilities 27 21,01,971 19,87,457 17,02,409
(b) Other current liabilities 28 3,15,86,292 | 11,96,09,087 3,35,15,444
(c) Provisions 29 62,78,823 43,85,123 58,38,509
Total current liabilities 19,66,58,520 | 25,22,65,234 11,87,16,203
Total 73,62,79,616 | 38,73,59,682 16,97,02,739
Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 1to 47
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board
2l
D) A f( g»?
Binayak Rath P L Sathinarayanan
Partner . Director Director
Membe¥ship No. 048169 DIN: 02784819 DIN: 02852765
Place : Vadodara Place : Vadodara
Date : 20th May 2019 Date : 20th May 2019




INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Amount in Rs.)

ks For the year For the year ended
Particulars - ended 31st 31st March, 2018
March, 2019
I|Revenue from operations 30 75,49,38,701 47,69,97,091
I1|Other income 31 34,77,200 69,17,737
Ill{Total income (141} 75,84,15,901 48,39,14,828
IV|EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 32 23,48,36,596 9,39,68,639
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-| 33 (5,80,66,321) 38,12,999
progress
Excise Duty - 12,88,839
Employee Benefits Expense 34 19,89,03,225 14,80,37,122
Finance Costs 35 70,69,466 1,49,86,832
Depreciation and amortization expense 36 1,56,47,696 91,21,290
Other Expenses 27 28,55,21,291 17,61,89,299
Total expenses (IV) 62,39,11,953 44,74,05,020
V|Profit before exceptional item and tax (111-1V) 7,45,03,948 3,65,09,308
Exceptional ltems 38 (1,05,46,117) (8,23,414)
Profit Before Tax 6,39,57,831 3,56,86,394
VI|Tax expense: 39 (1,93,21,337) (86,58,501)
(a) Current tax relating to: Prior Period items
current year 2,14,27,000 94,06,789
earlier years - 6,46,411
(b) Deferred tax (21,05,663) (13,94,699)
VII|Profit for the year (V-VI) 4,46,36,494 2,70,27,893
VIll|Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement of the defined benefit plans 78,768 20,16,403
- tax impact (21,913) (5,55,569)
56,855 14,60,834
1X|Total comprehensive income for the year {(vii+vil) 4,46,93,349 2,84,88,727
X|Earnings per equity share: 40
Basic (in 7) 10.59 9.02
Diluted (in ") 10.59 9.02
Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 1tod?7

As per our report of even date attached
For VCA & Associates,

Chartered Accoupfants
FRN:114414W

R Thakkar
Partne
Membership No. 048169

Place : Vadodara

Date : 20th May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board

N & o™
| S\ S

Sl

Binayak Rath
Director
DIN: 02784819

P L sathinarayanan
Director
DIN: 0285276

Place : Vadodara
Date : 20th May 2019




INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on 31st march, 2019

Equity Share Capital

Particulars Amount in”

Balance as on 1st April, 2017 2,06,09,080
Changes during the year 93,67,760
Balance as on 31st March, 2018 2,99,76,840
Changes during the year 1,21,78,100
Balance as on 31st March, 2019 4,21,54,940

Other Equity

(Amount in Rs.)

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Security General Retained Total
Premium Reserve Earnings

Balance as at 1st April, 2017 60,75,912 50,29,716 1,11,05,628
Profit / Addition for the year 93,67,760 - 2,70,27,893 3,63,95,653
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans - - 14,60,834 14,60,834
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income for the year 93,67,760 - 2,84,88,727 3,78,56,487
Payment of dividend c 4 = -
Tax on dividends - 7 - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 1,54,43,672 - 3,35,18,443 4,89,62,115
Profit / Addition for the year 23,58,21,600 4,46,36,494 | 28,04,58,094
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans - 56,855 56,855
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income for the year 23,58,21,600 - 4,46,93,349 | 28,05,14,949

Utilised for issue of Bonus Shares (including
issue expenses)

Payment of dividend

Tax on dividend

Balance as at 31st March, 2019

25,12,65,272

7,82,11,792

32,94,77,064

As per our report of even date attached

Chartered Accou
FRN:114414W

CA. Ashald R Thakkar
Partner

Membership No. 048169

Place : Vadodara
Date : 20th May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board
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Binayak Rath
Director
DIN: 02784819

Place : Vadodara

Date : 20th May 2019

Sl
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P L Sathinarayanan

Director

DIN: 02852765




INDUTCH COMPQOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2019

{Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Rerlacs 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
[A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 7,45,03,548 3,65,09,808
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,56,47,696 91,21,290
Interest to Banks 28,86,299 87,33,892
Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment sold/discarded (net) - -
Unwinding of discount 1,90,880 -
Re-measurement of Defined benefit plans (78,768) 20,16,403
Interest Income (12,18,211) =
Dividend received i &
Net Profit on sale of Current Investments . ~
Net gain on investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss - -
Sundry balances written back {net) - -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) “ 4
Operating Profit before changes in working capital 9,19,31,845 5,63,81,393
Adjustment for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Inventories (8.31,64,043) {85,30,626)
Trade Receivables 38,94,471 (10,21,86,949)
Other Financial Assets {5,91,04,043) {3,99,34,736)
Other Assets (4,64,548) 4,70,021
Adjustment for Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables 4,95,77,576 5,16,35,437
Provisions 1,07.06,700 17,50,318
Other Liabilities (9,13,61,142) 10,5€,44,924
Cash flow from operations after changes in working capital (7,79,83,185) 6,52,29,782
Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refunded (2,14,52,542) (81,62,648)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities {9,94,35,727) 5,70,67,134

[B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including Capital Advances {17,58,85,938) (5,32,02,851)
& cwip
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Purchase of Investments (1,08,867) -
Sale of Investments . “
Interest Income 14,88,115 (5,94,188)
Bividend Income - -
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,14,450 (1,33,34,788)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (17,15,93,240) {6,71,31,827)
[C] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Borrowings 10,64,22,036 1,41,28,680
Issue of Equity Share Capital 24,79,99,700 1,87,35,520
Payment of dividend distribution tax 4 =
Net Increase/({Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings (1,91,69,709) (30,11,710)
Interest Expenses (28,86,299) (87,33,892)
Met Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities 33,23,65,727 2,11,18,597
Net increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,13,36,760 1,10,53,905
Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of year (see Note 1) 1,10,57,933 4,028
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year (see Note 1) 7,23,94,693 1,10,57,932
Notes:
(1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash an Hands 74,594 20,033
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts 1,23,20,058 1,10,37,899
In Fixed Deposits 6,00,00,000 -
Cash and Cash equivalents as restated 7,23,94,693 1,10,57,933

2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting
Staridard (Ind AS)- 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”,

As per our report of evgn date attached
For and on behalf of the Board
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INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Notes to the financial statements

1

Corporate information:

Indutch Composites Technology Private Limited was incorporated in 2010 as private limited Company and presently has registered office at
401, Pawan Complex, 9 Prakash Colony, Jetalpur Road, Alkapuri Vadodara, Gujarat-380007. The company is a leading manufacturer of
Composite Moulds and related solutions provider in wind energy sector - having facilities at Vadodara and Chennai.

Application of new Indian Accounting Standards:
The Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015 {as amended) till the financial statements are authorized have been considered in preparing these financial statements.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 and Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019 has notified the new Ind AS and certain amendments to existing Ind ASs. They shall
come into force on April 1, 2019 and therefore, the Group shall apply the same with effect from that date.

(a) New Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 116) “Leases”:

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 “Leases” w.ef. April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on balance sheet lessee
accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard alsa contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements as prescribed in Ind AS 17. The effect on the Financial statements on
adoption of Ind AS 116 is being evaluated by the Group.

{b) Other Amendments:
Several other Indian Accounting Standards have been amended on various issues with effect from April 1, 2019. The following amendments

are relevant to the company:

(i} Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”- Income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments;
{ii) Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”- Accounting for plan amendment, curtailment or settlement;

(iii) Ind AS 23 “Borrowing Costs"- Accounting treatment for specific borrowings post capitalization of corresponding qualifying asset;
{iv) Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”- Measurement of prepayment features with negative compensation in case of debt instruments.

None of these amendments are expected to have any material effect on the Group's Consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation and presentation:

. Statement of Compliance:

During May 2018 here has been change in shareholding of the comnpany, 55% being held b Munjal Auto Ltd., a stock exchange listed company,
where the company has become a subsidiary of a listed entity. By virtue of this Ind AS provisions are attracted and hence the standards are
applicable since 1st april 2017. In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Company has adopted Indian Accounting standards (referred to as “Ind AS") notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies {Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) {Amendment) Rules, 2016 as
amended with effect from April 1, 2017.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 [as amended). These are the Company’s firct Ind AS Financial Statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2017. The
mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions have been availed by the Company on First-time adoption

Previous period figures in the Financial Statements have beern restated incompliance to Ind AS.

Up to the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company had prepared the Financial Statements under the historical cost convention on accrual
basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in India, applying the applicable Accounting Standards as
prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ('Previous GAAP).

In accordance with ird AS 101-“First Time adeption of Indian Accounting Standards” (Ind AS 101), the Company has presented a reconciliation
of Shareholders' equity under Previous GAAP and Ind AS as at March 31, 2018, and April 1, 2017 and of the Profit after tax as per Previous

GAAP and Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2018,

ii. Accounting Convention:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except far cartain financial instruments that
easured at fair values and the defined benefit pians, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

coct is genorally based an the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal Lacs except

otherwise stated.

Operating

Cycle:

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and hon-current.

Significant Accounting Policies:

. Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment (including furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc.) held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of
acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes (other than those available for set offjand other incidental expenses.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes items directly attributable to the canstruction or acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipment, and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as-other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction} less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the written down value method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis at the written down value method over estimated economic useful lives of its property, plant and

equipment generally in accordance with that provided in the Schedule Il to the Act. Estimated useful lives of these assets are as under:

Description Years
Building 30-60
Lease Assets oyer -
lease
Plant & Machinery 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office Equipment 5
Computers 3

Anitern of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon dispasal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as

the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amaortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recagnised on a writteh down value basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal, or when no future econamic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset s derecognised.

impairment of tangible and intangible assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assetis
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
dispasal and value in use.

When it is not possible to estimate the recaverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
_generating unit to which the asset belongs. When 2 reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allacated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a




If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit] is increased to the
revised estimate of its recaverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Inventories:

vi.

wii.

viit.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable/ usable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a moving weighted
average. Finished goods and work-in-progress (along with Stock in transit) include appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventory of stores and spare parts is valued at FIFO basis at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

. Revenue Recognition:

On 28 March 2018, the MCA notified Ind AS 115, a new revenue recognition standard that replaces existing Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18. Ind AS
115 is applicable from 1 April 2018, i.e., FY 2018~19. The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that revenue needs to be recognised when an entity
transfers the control of goods and services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled. The application of the standard
does not have any significant Impact on the retained earnings as at 1st April, 2018 or on these financial statements.

(a) Revenue from the sale of goods and or services is recognised when :

-the Company has entered into a contract for supply of goods or services with an identifed customer;
-the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

-the Company has perfomed its intended obligaion;

- upon acceptence of relevant tests Company passes on managerial/ effective control;

-it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company

{b) Dividend and interest income:
Dividend income from invastments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases:

The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfilment of a transaction is dependent on the
use of a specific asset and whether thetransaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Company in return for payment. Where this
occurs, the arrangement is

deemed to include a lease and is accounted for either as finance or an operating lease,

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and or the
present value of minimum lease payments substantially cover fair value of the asset. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases

Rental expense is generally recognised on a straight line basis over the term of relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Finance lease

Foreign Currency Translation

i. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financia! statements are measured in currency of primary environment in which the company operates and hence the
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR).

ii Transactions and balances
Fareign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates, on the date of the transactions and
balances are restated at the reparting date, and any differences there on are recognised on Net basis within Other Income, in the Statement

Borrowing costs:
recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred; which are subsequently measured at a
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Borrowings are derecognised when he obligation specified in the contract is disharged, cancelled or expired and the difference between
carrying amount of liability alongwith its relevent Asset adjusted will be recognised as either the Profit or Loss in Other Income.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, canstruction ar production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

. Employee Benefits:

{a) Short-term employee benefits:

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These
benefits include salaries and wages, performance incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur in next twelve months.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the
related service is rendered by employees.

{b) Post-employment Benefits:

{1) Defined Contribution Plan:

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, for which both the
employees and the Cormpany make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.

(2) Defined Benefit Plan:

Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity are recognized based on the present value of defined benefit obligation which is
computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual repaorting period.
These are accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as permitted.

Met interest on the net defined liability is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset and is recognised the Statement of Profit and Loss except those included in cost of assets as permitted.

Remeasurement of defined retirement benefit plans comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as defined above), are recognised in other comprehensive income except
those included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Financial Statements represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

{c} Other long term employee benefits:
The obligation for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences |s measured at present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to'be made by the company and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of defined benefit plans vide (b){2)

Lang term employee benefit costs comprising current service cost, interest cost implicit in long term employee benefit cost and gains or
losses on curtailments and settlements, re-measurement including actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as employee benefit expenses.

. Income Taxes:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

(@) Current Tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of
Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

(b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temparary differences can be utilised.
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of defarred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future
economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future incorne tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset
in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with asset will be

(c) Current and deferred tax for the year :

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value (at long term effective rate as last availed term
finance)of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefit is remote.

Product Warranty expenses:
The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are astablished using historical

information on the nature and cost of warranty claims, as per management estimates regarding possible future incidences based on type of

products and its failure expcetations. The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty clairn will arise, being liable up to three years.

Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity, Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrurments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the Statement of Profit
and Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liahilities at fair value through the Statement of Profit
and Loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial Assets:
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost:

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual
cash flows are classified in this category. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any

impairment losses.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss:
Financial assets are measured at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) unless it is reasured at amortised cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
profit or Loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

of financial assets:
esses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind
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expected credit losses to be measured through a loss sllowance, The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for trade receivables that
do not constitute a financing transaction, For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses, if the eredit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

{d) Derecognition of financial assets:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party, or when he company has no reasonable
expectaion of recovering a financial asset in its entireity or a portion thereof,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments:
Debt and equity instruments issued by Company are Classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Financial liabilities:

Financial liahilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’.

Where the time value of money is significant, Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. using the effective interest rate method .

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
ettlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Equity instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

(c) Derecognition of financial liabilities:
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Campany's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

First-time adoption — mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions:

(a)} Overall principle:

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2016 (‘the transition date’) by recognising all assets and
liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by
reclassifying certain items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under the Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in the measurement of recognised
assets and liabilities, However, this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the
Company as detfailed below,

(b) Derecognition of financial assets and finandial liabilities:
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring

on or after 1st April, 2017 (the transition date).

(c} Impairment of financial assets:

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retraspectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used
reasonable and supportable infermation that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial
instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has not
undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant
ihcreases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101

(d) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognised as of April
01, 2016(transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deamed cost as of the transition date.

(e) Fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition:
The Company has applied the requirements in paragraph B5.1.2A (b) of Ind A5 108 prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the
date of transition to Ind AS. This exemption has been availed by the Company

sh Flows
rted using indirect method, whereby PAT is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
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5 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the Company accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, erin the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods. The estimates are recorded for long term impacting values at the effective rate applicable to the company as
per latest evaluation for its long term borrowings.

(i) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies:
The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has made in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:-

(a) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment:
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external factors (significant decline asset's value,

economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor economic

performance of the asset etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i) Assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

(a) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits:

The employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ (income) include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact upen the carrying amount of employment benefit obligations.

{b} Useful lives of depreciable assets:
Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2019 management assessed that the useful
lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company. Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared to

(c) Estimation of provision for warranty:

These estimates are established using technical information on the nature and cost of warranty claims, as per management estimates
regarding possible future incidences based on type of products and its failure expcetations. The timing of outflows will vary as and when
warranty claim will arise, being liable up to three years.

Management, also estimates regarding possible future outflow on servicing the customers for any corrective action in respect of product
failure which is generally expected to be settled within a period upto 3 years, and the same has been carried forward into future at term
horrowing effective interest rate, currently applicable.

The assumptions made in relation to the current period are consistent with those in the prior year, if any. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the Company’s productivity and guality initiatives,

{d) Provision for slow moving and obsolete items in Inventory Valuation:
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Write-down of inventories are calculated based on an analysis of
foreseeable changes in demand, technology or market conditions to determine Obsolescence.




6 Property, Plant and Equipment

INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Motes to the financial statements

{Amount in Rs.)

Tangible Assets
) Capital Work "
Particulars [Assets in Progress- Building Lease Building E PI?nt & Fur‘mture B Vehicles _O‘ffice Computers Total
Waghodia quipment Fixtures Equipment
GROSS BLOCK
Atlst April 2017 - - 1,78,21,743 6,81,152 | 36,18,855 69,85,931 | 27,82,762 3,18,90,443
Additions 1,84,24,163 | 3,15,76,750 2,02,394 | 546,156 | 11,95,559 488401 | 698,648 | 5,31,32,071
Deduction/Adjustments . - = 2 S Z
At 31st March 2018 - 1,8424163 | 3,15,76,750 | 1,80,24,137 | 12,27,308 | 48,14,414 74,74,332 | 34,81,410 8,50,22,514
Additions 6,01,26,485 4,49,457 12,38,990 | 302,272,113 | 287051 200000| 1274892 14.85052| 9,52,89,045
Deduction/Adjustments " % < 2 i 2 = 7
At 31st March 2019 6,01,26,485 | 1,88,73,620 | 3,28,15,740 | 4,82,51,250 | 15,14,359 | 50,14,414 87,49,224 | 49,66,468 | 18,03,11,559
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1st April, 2007 - - 56,34,311 5,18,080 | 22,19,874 36,17,168 | 26,01,059 1,45,90,492
Charge for the year 3,898,735 44,27,147 24,27,292 1,87,192 6,35,262 7,20,236.| 2,73,643 90,69,507
Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - -
At 31st March 2018 - 3,98,735 44 27,147 20,61,603 705,272 2855136 43,37,404 | 28,774,702 2,36,59,999
Charge for the year 8,399,503 67,51,181 53,18,431 2,10,845 7,35,014 6,40,45% 9,01,100 1,54,56,533
Deduction/Adjustments
At 31st March 2019 - 12,98,238 | 1,11,78,328 | 1,33,80,034 9,16,117 | 35,90,150 49,77,863 | 37,75,802 3,91,16,532
Net Block
At 1st April, 2017 = = - 1,21,87,432 163,072 13,98,981 33,68,763 1,81,703 1,72,99,951
At 31st March, 2018 - 1,80,25,428 | 2,71,49,603 99,62,534 522,036 | 19,59,278 31,36,928 6,06,708 6,13,62,515
At 31st March 2019 6,01,26,485 1,75,75,382 2,16,37,412 3,48,71,216 5,98,242 | 14,24,264 37,71,361 | 11,90,666 14,11,95,027

MNotes:

1 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) recognised as of April 1, 2017 (transition date} measured as per
the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101,

2 For details of property, plant and equipment given as security to lenders, refer Note No. 25.

3 The aggregate depreciation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

4 Met Carrying Value of Building comprises of:

Asset held under Finance Lease
Cost/ Deemed Cost
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment

31st Mar, 2019

31st Mar, 2018

2,23,35.000 2,23,35,000
78,17,250 33,50,250
==
u‘f} ’
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&
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INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Notes to the financial statements

7 Intangible Assets (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars /Assets Spimpuiter Total
Software
GROSS BLOCK
At 1st April 2017 11,84,829 11,84,829
Additions 70,780 70,780
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At 31st March 2018 12,55,609 12,55,609
Additions 19,05,559 19,05,559
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At 31st March 2019 31,61,168 31,61,168
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1st April 2017 10,94,800 10,94,800
Charge for the year 51,783 51,783
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At 31st March 2018 11,46,583 11,46,583
Charge for the year 1,91,163 1,91,163
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At 31st March 2019 13,37,746 13,37,746
Net Block
At 1st April 2017 90,029 90,029
At 31st March, 2018 1,09,026 1,09,026
At 31st March 2019 18,23,422 18,23,422

1 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets
recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and
used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA
of Ind AS 101.

2 The aggregate amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation
and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

—7




8

10

Notes To Accounts

Deposits

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

As at
1st April, 2017

Unsecured, considered good
Deposits

3,13,30,407

2,60,19,686

71,81,000

Total

3,13,30,407

2,60,19,686

71,81,000

1) Deposits are largely in relation to public utilities and rental Aggrements.
2) However, The company has not taken exhustive search for information to assess significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recognition.

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

{Amount in Rs.)

E As at As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 | 1st April, 2017

Deferred Tax Assets 43,79,147 22,95,397 14,56,267
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - -
Total 43,79,147 22,95,397 14,56,267
For the Financial Year 2018-19: {Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Opening Balance Recognized in Recognized in Closing Balance

Statement of Profit Other
and Loss Comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax asset on account of:
Difference of Deprecialtion as per Books and Income 28,50,966 22,36,321 - 50,87,287
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 28,50,966 22,36,321 (21,913) 50,65,374
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Expenses claim for Tax on Payment Basis 5,55,569 - - 5,55,569
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B} 5,55,569 - 5,55,569
Net Deferred Tax (A-B} 22,895,397 22,36,321 (21,913) 45,09,805

For the Financial Year 2017-18:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Opening Balance Recognized in Recognized in Closing Balance
Statement of Profit Other
and Loss Comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Difference of Deprecialtion as per Books and Income 14,56,267 1,14,163 - 15,70,430
Restatements of Expenses as per Ind AS s 12,80,536 12,80,536
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 14,56,267 12,80,536 28,50,966
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Expenses claim for Tax on Payment Basis 5,55,569 5,55,569
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities {B) 2 - 5,55,569 5,55,569
Net Deferred Tax (A-B) 14,56,267 12,80,536 (5,55,569) 22,95,397
Other Non-Current Assets {Amount in Rs.)
As at As at As at

Particulars

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

1st April, 2017

Unsecured, considered good
Non Current Investments

Advance for Capex 7,86,91,333 - -
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision) 41,33,219 40,85,139 23,28,819
VAT/GST Recoverable 1,24,65,418 7,18,578 14,74,932
Retention with Customer 6,05,85,480 1,82,61,063 -
Prepayments - Leasehold Land {refer note 19(i}} - - -
Total 15,58,75,450 2,30,64,780 38,03,751




11

12

13

14

15

Inventories (Amount in Rs.)
Paktleiaie As at As at As at

3ist March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Raw Materials 4,62,85,762 2,11,88,040 88,44,415
Work in Process 87,09,522 - 67,60,000
Finished Goods (Incl. Dies and Moulds) 9,00,39,283 4,06,83,084 3,77,36,083
Store and spares - g -
Total 14,50,35,167 6,18,71,124 5,33,40,498

(i} For details of Inventories given as security to lenders, refer Note No. 25.

(ii) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense is disclosed in Notes 32, 32 and 37 in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments {Amount in Rs.)
: As at As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 | 1st April, 2017
Investment in Mutual Funds {Unquoted):
DSP Blackrock Microcap Fund 1,09,867 - -
1,09,867 5 -
1) The above Mutual Funds are valued at the value declared by the AMC.
Trade receivables {Amount in Rs.)
. As at As at As at
Particulars :
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
-Unsecured, Considered good 16,06,76,215 17,51,16,803 7,29,29,854
-Unsecured, Considered doubtful - -
Less: Impairment for doubtful trade receivables - -
Total 16,06,76,215 17,51,16,803 7,29,29,854

(i) Generally, the Company enters into long-term sales arrangement with its customers. The average credit period is around 45-60
(i) At 31st Mar, 2019, the Company had 3 customers having outstanding more than 5% of total trade receivables that accounted for

approximately 86.72%.of receivables outstanding.

(iii} During the Year Rs.1,05,46,117/- receivables have been derecognised since there is no reasonable expection of measurability in
terms of its probability of the amount and timing or receivability, The Company has filed for a claim in NCLT and holds no right over

goods supplied by counter party, The same are shown as exceptional items.

(vi) Age of receivables:

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

As at
1st April, 2017

Within the credit period

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

Upto 6 months past due 13,74,21,061 32,41,09,696 4,82,98,941
More than 6 months past due 2,32.55,154 18,23,63,333 2,46,30,913
Total 16,06,76,215 50,64,73,029 7,29,29,854
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Amount in Rs.)
. As at As at As at
R 315t March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 | 1st April, 2017
Balances with banks
I Current Accounts 1,23,20,098 1,10,37,899 3,638
Fixed Deposit 6,00,00,000 - 2
Cash on hand 74,594 20,033 390
Total 7,23,94,693 1,10,57,933 4,028
Other Bank Balances {Amount in Rs.)
A As at As at As at
Particulars

1st April, 2017

Balances with banks

Deposit with bank held as margin money against Bank guarantee & LC 1,27,80,050 1,56,94 500 23,59,712
Total 1,27,80,050 1,56,94,500 23,59,712
=
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Current Loans

{Amount in Rs.)

A As at As at As at
Particulars !
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 | 1st April, 2017
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to Employees 5,71,680 8,71,060 30,50,051
Deposits 39,87,378 35,85,628 -
Other receivables - 4,28,384 2
Total 45,59,058 48,85,072 30,50,051
Other Current Financial Assets (Amount in Rs.)
Pirticulsis As at As at . As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 | 1st April, 2017
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable 3,77,495 6,03,777 35,777
Total 3,77,495 6,03,777 35,777
Current Tax Assets (net) {Amount in Rs.}
Basticiilais As at As at As_at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Current Tax Assets
Advance tax (Net of Provision) - - 24,02,731
Total - . 24,02,731
Other Current Assets {Amount in Rs.)
Particala As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with Government Authorities - E =~
Prepaid Expenses 31,359,309 5,24,028 3,60,689
Advance to Vendors 26,04,309 47,55,042 53,88,402
Total 57,43,618 52,79,070 57,49,091
Equity Share Capital (Amount in Rs.)
icul As at As at As at
e 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 | _1st April, 2017
Authorised Share capital
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,00,00,000 4,00,00,000 2,50,00,000
Issued, subscribed & fully paid share capital
42,15,494 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,21,54,940 2,99,76,840 2,06,09,080
Total 4,21,54,940 2,99,76,840 2,06,09,080

(i) A reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period is as under:

Particulars No. of Shares Share Capital (in )
As at 1st April, 2017 20,60,908 2,06,09,080
Additions/(Reductions) 9,36,776 93,67,760
Asat 31st March, 2018 29,97 ,684 2,99,76,840
As at 1st April, 2018 29,97,684 2,99,76,3840
Additions/{Reductions) 12,17,810 1,21,78,100
As at 31st March,2019 42,15,494 4,21,54,940
’_,..-""?




(i1) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:
For all matters submitted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the Company, every holder of an equity share as reflected in the
records of the Company on the date of the shareholders meeting shall have one vote in respect of each share held. Any dividend
declared by the company shall be paid to each holder of Equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to total equity
shares outstanding as on that date. In the event of liquidation of the Company all preferential amounts if any shall be discharged by
the Company. The remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion to the number
of shares held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date.

(i) Details of shares held by holding company are classified as under:

Particulars

No. of shares

Extent of Holding

Munjal Auto Industries Ltd
As at 31st March, 2019

28,66,536

58.00%

(iv) Details of shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the Company are as under:-

Particulars No. of shares Extent of Holding
Binayak Rath 674479 16%
Sathinarayanan Palaniappan 674479 16%
Munjal Auto Industries Ltd. 2866536 68%

(v) Pursuant to the board resolution of June, 2018 , the company has issued 12,17,810 Right shares of face value Rs. 10 to Munjal
Auto Industries Limited and securities Premium of Rs.193.644/- totalling Rs. 203.644 per share aggregating to Rs.24,80,00,000/-
During June 2018, First Call was made of Rs.7.5 per share towards the Face value and Rs. 120 per share as securities premium
totalling Rs.127.5/- per share aggregating to Rs. 15,52,70,775/-.
Balance final call of Rs. 2.5 towards face value and Rs. 73.644 per share as securities premium totalling to Rs.9,27,28,925/- called up

in March, 2019.

Expenses relating to such actions have been writtén off during the year to the profit and loss account.

(vi) Of the Equity shares held by the two WTD, equally totalling 26.10% of the current Equity capital have been pledged to the bank

as security towards Term Loan in march,2019.

21 Other Equity

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

As at
1st April, 2017

Capital Reserve

General Reserves 25,12,65,272 1,54,43,672 60,75,912

Retained Earnings 7,82,11,794 3,35,18,444 50,29,717

Total 32,94,77,066 4,89,62,116 1,11,05,629

(i) Particulars relating to Other Equity: {Amount in Rs.)
" As at As at As at

SRUEERI 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 |  1st April, 2017

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance - - -

Add: Movements & - -

Closing Balance (A) - - -

Securities Premiun

Opening Balance 1,54.43,672 60,75,912 60,75,912

Addition during the year 23,58,21 600 93,67,760 -

Closing Balance (B) 25,12.65,272 1,54,43,672 60,75,912

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 3,35,18,443 50,29,716 18,49,128

Add: Net profit after tax transferred from Statement 4.,46,36,494 2,70,27,893 31,80,588

of Profit & Loss

Add: Other Comprehensive income arising from re- 56,855 14,60,834

measurement of defined benefit obligation net of

incorme tax

Closing Balance ( C) 7,82,11,752 3,35,18,443 50,29,716

Total (A+B+C) 32,94,77,064 4,89,62,114 1,11,05,628

% il




22 Borrowings

23

24

{Amount in Rs.)

= As at As at As at
Particulars ;
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Secured
Term Loans
From Banks & Others 13,71,98,168 3.06,36,675 1,67,93,043
UnSecured
Finance Lease - -
Total 13,71,98,168 3,06,36,675 1,67,93,043

(i) Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings including current maturities: These |loans are secured
by a first charge on inventories, receivables and all other current assets of the Company, Hypothication of plant and Machinery,
immovable Properties, Personal Guarentee of Directors and pledge of Equity Shares of two WTD including their personal House

Properties.

Particulars

Terms of Repayment

Term loan outstanding RS. 24,14,650

The Repayment was started from February, 2016. Total
tenor of loan is 60 menths from date of first disbursement.
The principle loan amount of Rs. 80.00 Lacs is to be repaid
in 60 months out of which the first 40 months the
repayment amount will be Rs.1,30,000/- and remaining 20
months is of Rs. 1,40,000/-.

Term loan outstanding RS. 13,47,58,118/-

Repayable in 26 Quarterly installments of varing Amounts.

Repayments will commence from 31.12.2020.

Interest rate on the above term loans range from 8.95% to 12.75%

Other Financial liabilities (Amount in Rs.)
P As at As at .As at
' 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
UnSecured
Finance Lease 1,61,04,554 1,98,36,329 -
Total 1,61,04,554 1,98,36,329 -
Long-term provisions {Amount in Rs.)
Particulars e gt o 0 As‘ 5
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Provision for employee benefits (For details refer note no: 41)
Gratuity 68,33,089 49,91,863 21,96,603
Leave Encashment 36,10,309 6,90,625 2,82,181
Provision for warranties 42,42,970 - .
Total 1,46,86,368 56,82,488 24,78,784

{i) Movement in warranties Provision:

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

For the Year
ended

For the Year
ended

Opening balance

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

Additions during the year 45,43 466

Amount utilised during the year

Provision reversed during the year - =
Unwinding of discount on provisions 1,90,880 -
Closing balance 47,34,346 -
Long-term Provisions 42,42,970 -
Short-term Provisions 491,377 -

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value as best estimate of the future economic benefits that will be required
under the Company’s obligations for warranties. The estimate has been made on the basis of historical warranty trends and may vary
as a result of new materials, altered manufacturing processes or other events affecting product guality,

L
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Borrowings {Amount in Rs.}
. As at As at As at
Particulars " !
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks & Others - 1,91,69,709 2,21,81,419
Total " 1,91,69,709 2,21,81,419

(i) These loans are secured by a first charge on inventories, receivables and all other current assets of the Company, Hypothication of

plant and Machinery, Immovable Properties, Personal Guarentee of Directors and pledge of Equity Shares of two WTD.

Trade Payables {Amount in Rs.)
o As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Trade Payables 15,66,91,434 10,71,13,858 5,54,78,421
Total 15,66,91,434 10,71,13,858 5,54,78,421

(i) Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract / purchase orders. The average credit

period is 45-90 days.

(i) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006" has been determined to the extent such parties have not been identified on the basis of information available with the

Trade payables -Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small enterprises®

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

As at
1st April, 2017

(a) Amount remaining unpaid but not due as at year end
Amount remaining unpaid / overdue as at year end
Total

20,11,208
20,96,312

1,41,349
28,47,132

3,13,760
48,98,205

41,07,520

29,88,481

57,11,965

(b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during

(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end

(e} Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

to the small enterprise

(i) No interest is provided or paid towards overdues.
*Based on the confirmation received from Vendors.

Other Financial Liabilities

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As at
31ist March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

As at
1st April, 2017

Current maturities of long term debt
Interest accrued on borrowings and due
Uriclaimed Dividends (Refer note below)
Security Deposits

Expenses payable

Payable to Employees

Payable for Capital Goods

18,48,000

2,53971

19,87,457

17,02,409

Total

21,01,971

19,87,457

17,02,409

49,
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Cost of materials consumed

{Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Cost of materials consumed 23,48,36,596 9,39,68,639
Total 23,48,36,596 9,39,68,639

33

Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress

{Amount in Rs.)

34

For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Opening stock:
Finished goods 4,06,83,084 3,77,36,083
Work-in-progress - 67,60,000
Total (A) 4,06,83,084 4,44,96,083
Closing stock:
Finished goods 9,00,39,883 4,06,83,084
Work-in-progress 87,09,522 -
Total (B) 9,87,49,405 4,06,83,084
Total(A-B) {5,80,66,321) 38,12,999
Employee Benefits Expense {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Salaries and wages 18,68,80,263 13,66,84,118
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,13,96,135 1,06,91,748
Staff welfare expenses 6,26,827 6,61,256
Total 19,89,03,225 14,80,37,122

35

Finance Costs

{Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

Forthe year ended
31st March, 2018

Particulars

Interest on: "

Borrowings from banks 13,71,651 29,12,289
Others 41,863,167 62,52,940
Other costs 13,23,768 58,21,603
Unwinding of discount on provisions 1,890,880 -
Total 70,69,466 1,49,86,832

36

Depreciation and amortization expense

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2019

For the year ended
31st March, 2018

Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment 1,54,56,532 90,69,507
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.9%,163 51,783
Total 1,56,47,695 91,211,290




37 Other Expenses

(Amount in Rs.}

r For the year ended|For the year ended
particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Consumption of Stores & Spares, Tools - -
Power and fuel 7,47,09,340 3,78,38,993
Freight Charges 7221972 42,60,799
Repairs and Maintenance : - -
Repairs to Buildings 16,77,028 50,72,845
Repairs to Machinery 6,15,684 B
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 10,96,847 4,56,166
Rent 6,21,06,510 4,33,06,775
Wages to Contractors 3,50,36,235 1,72,13,481
Professional Charges 55,82,259 6,580,966
Insurance Premium 16,68,289 10,78,391
Payment to Auditors 4,64,016 85,000
Loss on property, plant and equipment - -
sold/discarded (Net)
Rates and Taxes excluding taxes on income 1,08,773 -
Charity & Donation / CSR Expenses - -
Warranty Expenses 45,43, 467 #
Exchange fluctuation (net) - 24,57,039
Impairment of doubtful trade receivables - .
Miscellaneous Expenses” 9.06,84,865 6,37,28,844
Total 28,55,21,291 17,61,89,29%

* None of the item individually accounts for more than 10,00,000 or 1% of r

(i) Payment to auditors has been classified below:

evenue whichever is higher.

{Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended|For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
As Auditors 2,00,000 35,000
Eor Taxation Matters 75,000 65,000
For Other Services 50,000 -
For out of pocket expenses “ 5
Total 3,25,000 1,50,000
38 Exceptional item {(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars agen Res
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Exceptional ltem 10546117 0
TOTAL 10546117 0

Exceptional items are those which are considered for separate disclosure in the financial statements considering their size, nature or
incidence. Such items included with in Profit and loss are as under:

_During the year receivables of Rs.1,05,46,117/- have been written off as the company doesn't have reasonable expectation of
measurability, in terms of its probability of the amount and the timing or receivability. The Company has filed for a claim in NCLT and
holds no right over goods supplied by counter party.




39 Tax Expense (Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Current tax in relation to:
Current years 2,14,27,000 94,06,789
Earlier years - 6,46,411
Deferred Tax
In respect of current year {21,05,663) (13,94,699)
Unused Tax Credits =
Total income tax expense recognised in the current (1,93,21,337] (86,58,501
(i) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Profit before tax 7,45,03,948 3,85,26,211
Income tax expense calculated at 27.82% 2,07,26,998 1,07,17,992
Tax effects of amounts which are not
Expenses not allowed in Income Tax £6,83,565
Reversal of Provision of diminution of investments
Exempted Income (27,29,066)
Deduction of Section 80IC
Exceptional ltems 29,33,930 -
Tax adjustment of earlier years 6,46,411
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation 21,913 (5,55,569)
’7 2,76,37,341 1,08,08,834
40 Earnings per share
[ For the year ended As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
Profit after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders 4,46,36,494 2,70,27,893 31,80,588
No. of Equity Shares 42,15,494 29,97,684 20,60,908
Weighted average number of equity shares 3682702 2060908 2060908
Basic earnings per equity share 10.59 9.02 1.54
Diluted earnings per equity share 10.59 3.02 1.54
Face Value per equity share 10.00 10.00 10.00
41 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for (Amount in Rs.)
paiticulare As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017
(A) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt under the labaur
Income Tax 44.78,021 44,78,021 30,06,253
{B) Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed an capital 36,71,00,000 £,00,00,000 (6}
sccaunt and not provided for (Net of Advances)

The above contingent liahilities are against the proceedings pending with Income Tax Department far TDS Penalties and Assessments.

The above commitments are for capital contratts to be executed for the upcoming plant.
The company has entered into a long term Lease arrangement with Holding company for a period of 10 years, with Rentals due to

start in next financial year.
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Leases

The Company has obtained land and certain premises for its business operations (including furniture and fittings, therein as
applicable) under operating lease or leave and license agreements. These are generally not non-cancellable and periods range
between 11-12 months and 99 years under leave and licence and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The
Company has given refundable interest free security deposits in accordance with the agreed terms. These refundable security
deposits have been valued at amortised cost under relevant Ind AS.

Lease payments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent” in Note 37.

Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans:

Contributions to defined contribution plan are recognised as expenses when contributions become due.

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in
relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates specified by the
rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were
not due to be paid until after the end of the reparting period.

The major defined contribution plans operated by the Company are as below:

{i} Provident fund and Pension:

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 eligible employees of the Company are
entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company

make monthlv contributions at a specified percentage of the covered emplovees’ salarv.
The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund set up as an irrevocable trust by the Company, post

contribution of amount specified under the law to Employee Provident Fund Organisation on account of employee pension scheme.

The total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period are as under:

Particulars 31.03.2019
Employer's contribution to Provident and other Funds 1,13,96,135
Total 1,13,96,135

(b) Defined Benefit Plan:

(i) Gratuity:

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the Gratuity Act, employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or
termination of the employment on completion of five years or death while in employment. The level of benefit provided depends on
the member’s length of service and salary at the time of retirement/termination age. The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan
assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31st March, 2019 by a member firm of the
Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were maasured using the projected unit credit method.

The company has not created any fund against the Gratuity and Leave Encashment Liability pending on.

The campany has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for
a lump surm payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment ar on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service, Vesting occurs upen completion of five years of service. The
liability for gratuity as at the year-end is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

This plan typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Non Funding risk, langevity risk and salary risk.

(1} Non Funding Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the market yields
on government bonds denominated in indian Rupees. Since the same has pot been funded the company carries the risk relating to
fluctuation In market Interest rates and return the comipany enjoys on unfunded portion.

(111} Longevity Risk:
The present value of the defined henefit plan liability is calculated by vefererice to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the

{IV) Salary Risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an

he salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. -




GRATUITY
For 31st March For 31st March

Present Value of Benefit Obligations 2019 2019

- changes over the valuation period

Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 1-4-2018 50,97,313 2255070
Past Service cost “ 2917972

Current Service cost 2 2ahordly 1656844

Interest cost 392,493 173640

Benefits paid

Actuarial losses (gains) arising from change in financial 0

assumptions

Actuarial losses (gains) arising from change in demographic

assumptions {2,10,144)

Actuarial losses (gains) arising from experience adjus (753,911) (16,96,070)

Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 31-3-2019 6,961,620 50,97,313

Bifurcation of Present Value of Benefit Obligation

Current - Amount due within one year 128,531 1,05,449
Non-Current - Amount due after one year 68,33,089 49,91,864
Total 6,961,620 50,97,313

Expected Benefit Payments in Future Years

Year 1 128,531 1,05,449
Year 2 294,800 1,89,765
Year 3 243,763 2,01,403
Year 4 235,353 1,76,270
Year 5 232,420 1,70,188
Year 6 to Year 10 9,306,804 4,96,608

Sensitivity Analysis
- Effects of Key Assumptions on Defined Benefit Obligations

Discount Rate - 1 percent increase 63,09,566 44,72,032
Discount Rate - 1 percent decrease 77,35,871 58,44,395
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent increase 773454 58,42,146
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent decrease 6,299,955 44,62,864
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent increase 6,982,504 51,14,844
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent decredse 6,938,759 50,78,582
LEAVE

Present Value of Benefit Obligations

- changes over the valuation period

Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 1-4-2018 7,15,688 2,92,808
Current Service cost 23,72,298 5,10,523
Past Service cost 0 0
Interest cost 55,108 22,546
Benefits paid - 0
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from change in

financial

assumptions - (32970}

Actuarial losses (gains) arising from change in
demographic

assumptions = 0
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from experience

adjustments 6,75,144 {77218)
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Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 31-3-2019 38,18,238 7,15,683

Bifurcation of Present Value of Benefit Obligation

Current - Amount due within one year 1,30,322 25,063
Neon-Current - Amount due after one year 36,87,916 69,06,525
Total 38,18,238 7,15,688

Expected Benefit Payments in Future Years

Year 1 1,30,322 25,063
Year 2 1,44,100 26,602
Year 3 1,35,882 36,310
Year 4 1,31,194 24,432
Year 5 1,33,260 23,589
Year 6 to Year 10 10,22,666 53,047

Sensitivity Analysis
- Effects of Key Assumptions on Defined Benefit Obligations

Discount Rate - 1 percent increase 33,48,354 6,19,949
Discount Rate - 1 percent decrease 44,02,072 8,34,646
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent increase 44,00,262 8,34,278
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent decrease 33,41,580 6,18,572
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent increase 38,40,767 7,20,014
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent decrease 37,93,388 7,10,962

44 Segment Reporting
The Company's operations falls under single segment namely "Manufacturing of Composite Products & Moulds". The Board of
Directors of the Company evaluates the Company's performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various
performance indicator of the Company as a single unit, Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the
requirement of IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018

Revenue From:
Outside India 3,55,77,664 3,21,850
In India 71,93,61,037 47,66,75,241

45 Related Party Disclousers
Name of related parties and description of their relationships are as under:
{A) Holding Company:

Munjal Auto Industries Ltd Since 22.05.2018
Murvari B W Till 21.05.2018
(B) Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives:

Mr.Binayak Rath Director Since 22.02.2010
Mr.P L Sathinarayan Director Since 22,02.2010
Mr.Sudhir Kumar Munjal Director Since 22.05.2018
Mr.Anuj Munjal Director Since 22.05.2018
Mrs.Ranjita Mishra Director Till 21.05.2018
Johannes Ter Laak Director Till 21.05.2018
Mr.Debdut Mishra Chief Executie Offict Since 12.05.2017




(C) Enterprise in which directors and their relatives are directors:

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in ordinary course of business during the year:

{Amount in Rs.}

Enterprise in Ky Mafnagenal
which directors REvSaO
Nature of Transaction Holding Co g
: g and their relatives L
are directors
Remuneration paid - - 2,03,21,362 2,03,21,362
= 4 (1,00,75,262) {1,00,75,262)
———— - - 82,75,000 82,75,000
- - (36,00,000) {36,00,000)
Mr. P L Sathinarayan - - §a/hp0n 3?’75’@0
- {36,00,000) {36,00,000})
Mrs. Ranjita Mishra - - Salae 851,962
- (60,811) (60,811)
; - - 31,20,000 31,20,000
Mr. Debdut Mishra At .
! - (28,14,451) (28,14,451)
e A 12,31,42,064 . 7,32,35,642 19,63,77,706
{1,51,42,064) - {1,88,51,455) {3,39,93,519)
- - 6,95,000 6,95,000
Mr.Binayak Rath - Bala tak T =
inay nce / taken = - (27,71,000) (27,71,000)
12,49,000 12,49,000
Mr.Binayak Rath - Repaid —
Ll o (22,17,000) (22,17,000)
- - 15,56,313 15,56,313
Miraj P t
iraj Rotor Blades Tech. Pvt Ltd Balance / taken = = (13,30,000) (18.30,000)
4,00,000 4.00,000
Miraj Rot l; =ch, P -R id
iraj Rotor Blades Tech, Pvt Ltd - Repai (29,86,313) (79.86,313)
Mr. Ranjita Mishra - Balance / taken 5 = (90,47,142) (90,47,142)
e S ) 93,35,211 93,35,211
Mr. Ranjita Mishra - Repalid including interest -
; A - - 3,00,00,059 3,00,00,059
Mr.Sudhir Munjal - Balance / taken = - = :
3,00,00,059 3,00,00,059
Mr.Sudhir Munjal - Repaid =
N BB i Tl e st 1,81,42,064 * - 1,81,42,064
urvari - Repaid - including intere (1,51,42,064) = 3 (1,51,42,064)
10,50,00,000 ; ; 10,50,00,000
Munjal Aute Industries Ltd - Balance / Taken - =
; , 10,50,00,000 - : 10,50,00,000
Munijal Auto Industries Ltd - Repaid 3 = F
13,580,822 - 13,80,822
Munjal Auta Industries Ltd - Balance Interest = : :
] - 3,88,73,126 - 3,88,73,126
Goods and services = (2,18,34,085) (2,18,34,085)
e I - N - 3,88,73,126 3,88,73,126
Miraj Rotor Blades Tech. Pvt Ltd ( Pure ase) ) (2,18,34,085) (2,18,34,085)
o R - 46,21,539 46,21,539
Miraj Rotor Blades Tech. Pvt Ltd ( Sales) = (21,81,527) (21,81,527)

Amaunts in brackets indicate previous year figures
Related party: The Company has paid interest to the Holding company, foritsv
provisions of The Companies Act 2013, which specifies
profile. The said demand loans were received pending final ¢
since the future business plan was under further deliberation an

received from Directors and Holding company.

: pany
:2?‘%9@ R4

' | year.

and hence no interest is considered.
tered into a long term Lease arrangement with

the minimum rate of interest aligned to Government's
all on Rights share issue, which was subscribed by the Holding Company,
d till such plans were re- discussed and approved, the amount were

srious demand loans, in consonance with the relevant
ecurities of matching

and are considered to have been received and

a period of 10 years, with Rentals due to

f S I



46 Balances of trade and other rece
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Balance as at:

(Amount in Rs.)
|

i As at As at As at
Partloyjars 315t March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017
Remuneration payable: 7,833,421 5,35,800 8,34,921
Mr.Binayak Rath 5,72,332 3,98,900 3,598,900
Mr.P L Sathinarayan 2,11,089 86,089 4,36,021
Mrs. Ranjita Mishra - 50,811 3
Miraj Rotor Blades Tech. Pvt Ltd 35,26,914 74,76,880 (1,01,458)
Munjal Auto Industries Ltd - Interest Payable 12,42,740 =

ivables, trade and other payable

s and loans are subject to the confirmation/reconciliation.

Adjustments if any, will be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which will not have material impact,

Financial Instrument Disclosure:
{a) Capital Management:

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short

term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and short term

strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity,

short term bank borrowings.

cash generated from operations, long term and

The Company menitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio

of the Company.

et debt includes interest bearing borrowings less cash and ca

and current investments.

The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Company.

sh equivalents, other bank balances (including earmarked balances)

(Amount in Rs.)

Net debt to equity

Paritalars As at As at As at
) 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017 |
Equity share capital 4,21,54,940 2,99,76,840 2,06,09,080
Other Equity 32,94,77,066 4,89,62,116 1,11,05,629
Total Equity (A) 37,16,32,006 7,89,38,950 3,17,14,709
Non-current borrowings 13,71,98,168 3,06,36,675 1,67,93,043
Short term borrowings 3 1,91,68,709 2,21,81,419
Current maturities of long term borrawings 18,48,000 19,87,457 17,02,409
Gross Debt (B) 13,90,46,168 5,17,03,.841 4,06,76,871
Total Capital (A+B) 51,06,78,173 13,07,32,797 7,23,91,580
Gross Debt as above 13,90,46,168 5,17,93,841 4,06,76,871
Less: Current investments 1,09,867 = :
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 7,23,94,693 1,10,57,933 4,028
Less: Other balances with bank {including earmarked palances) 1,27,80,050 1,56,94,500 23,59,712
Net Debt (C) 5,37,61,558 2,50,41,408 3,83,13,131
0.24 0.45 1.21

Net debt to equity as at 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2018 has been computed based on

it is based on ¢losing eqguity.

average equity and as on April 1, 2017,




(b) Disclosures:
This section gives an overview of the significance of financia! instruments for the Company and provides additional information on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed
in Note a{xii), (xiii) and (xiv).

(i) Financial assets and liabilities:
The following tables presents each category of financial assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2019, 31st March, 2018 and April 1,
(Amount in Rs.}
As at As at As at
31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2017

Particulars

1. Financial Assets:
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(a) Investments in mutual funds: 1,09,867 - =
Measured at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables 16,06,76,215 17,51,16,803 7,29,29,854
Cash and cash equivalents 7,23,94,693 1,10,57,933 4,028
Other bank balances 1,27,80,050 1,56,94,500 23,59,712
Loans 3,58,89,465 3,09,04,758 1,02,31,051
QOther financial assets 3,77,495 6,03,777 35,777
Total 28,22,27,785 23,33,77,770 8,55,60,422

II. Financial Liabilities:

W e e e =

Measured at amortised cost

Long term borrowings 13,71,98,168 3,06,36,675 1,67,93,043
Short term borrowings = 1,91,69,709 2,21,81,419
Trade payables - - -

Other financial liabilities 21,01,971 19,87,457 17,02,409
| Total 13,93,00,139 5,17,93,841 4,06,76,871

(ii) Fair value measurement:

This note provides information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value measurements under ind AS are categorised as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or lizbilities that the company can access at
measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

« Lovel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets/liabilities.

R~




Eair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair valueona recurring hasis:

Following table gives information about how the fair values of the Company's financial assets are determined: (Amount in Rs.)
. ‘] i Fair value as at Fair value

r SRR CES 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018 hierarchy

ﬁnvestment in mutual funds 1,09,867 - Level 1

valuation technigue and key input: NAV declared by respective Asset Management Companies.

Eair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required):
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets snd financial liabilities recognized in the financial statements
except fair value of investments in mutual funds approximate their fair values.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended 315t March, 2019, 31st March, 2018 and April 1, 2017.

(iii) Financial risk management objectives:

While ensuring liquidity is sufficient to meet Company's operational requirements, also monitors and manages key financial risks
relating to the operations of the Company by analysing exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk
{including currency rick and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices- will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return.

Currency Risk:

The Company’s exposure to currency risk relates primarily to the Company's operating activities including anticipated sales &
purchase and borrowings where the transactions are denominated in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency.

The Company has not entered into any forward foreign exchange contracts during the reporting period.

Credit risk management:

Credit risk refers to the risk that 3 counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
The Company has adopted 2 policy of anly dealing with creditworthy counterparties asa frieans of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaulis. The Company's exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and spread amongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is centrolied by counterparty limits that are reviewed and
approved by the management of the Company. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principaily
consict of balance with banks, investments in debt instruments/ bonds, trade receivables and loans and advances. None of the
financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks.

palances with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end. In other financial assets that are not past dues and not
impaired, there were no indication of default in repayment as at the year end.

Interest rate risk management:
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from the long term borrowings with fixed rates. The Company's fixed rates borrowings

are carried at amortised cost.

Liquidity risk management:

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and availability of funding through an
adecuate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of liguidity
position and cash and cash equivalents on the hasis of expected cash fluws. In addition, liquidity management alsa involves projecting
cash flows considering level of liguid assets necessary to meet obligatians by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets &
liabilities and monitoring balance sheet liguidity ratios.

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The information included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be reguired to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. The gontractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.
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{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 1 month -1 year 1 year -3 years | More than 3 years
As at 31st March, 2019
Long term borrowings - 6,00,00,000 7,71,98,168
Short term borrowings - 7 -
Trade payables 15,66,91,434 - .
Other financial liabilities (7,50,96,197) - E
Total 8,15,95,238 6,00,00,000 7,71,98,168
As at 31st March, 2018
Long term borrowings - 3,06,36,675
Short term borrowings 1,91,69,709 2 =
Trade payables 10,71,13,858 - -
Other financial liabilities (2,86,49,218) - -
Total 9,76,34,350 3,06,36,675 -

The following table details the Company's expe

cted maturity for its non-deriva

tive financial assets. The information included in the

table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be

earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-
Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a netas

derivative financial assets is necessary in
set and liability basis.

order to understand the

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 1 month -1 year 1year—3years | More than 3 years

As at 31st March, 2019

Trade and other receivables 16,06,76,215 - "
Investments in Mutual funds 1,09,867 = e
Loans 45,59,058 3,13,30,407 -
Other financial assets 3,77,495 - :
Total 16,57,22,635 3,13,30,407 5
As at 31st March, 2018

Trade and other receivables 17.,51,16,803 -
Investments in Mutual funds # # e
Loans 48,285,072 2,60,19,686 -
Other financial assets 6,03,777 - -
Total 18,06,05,652 2,60,19,686 < J

.+ Company has access 1O cammitted credi
promoters and Holding company . The Company

t facilities as described below, apart from comfort of availability of funds. from

expects to meet its other obligations fram operating

¢ash flows and proceeds of

(Amount in Rs.)

Unsecured bank overdraft facility, reviewed annually and payable at call

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st Mtarch, 2018

Amount used

1,91,69,709

Amount unused

2,00,00,000

8,30,291




First time Ind AS adoption - Reconciliation
48 Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018 and April 1, 2017

{Amount in Rs.}

As at March 31 2018 (End of last period
presented under Previous GAAP}

As at April 01 2017 (Date of transition)

Faciealar: Mates orevious Ganp|  1MAAS | AsperindAs [ o o T IndAS | AsperindAS
Adjustments | balance sheet Adjustments | balance sheet
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 3,42,12,911 2,71,49,603 6,13,62,514 1,72,99,949 1,72,99,949
{b) Capital work-in-progress
{c) Intangible Assets 1,09,026 1,098,026 90,028 90,028
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2z 60,000 (60,000) - 60,000 (60,000) =
(ii) Deposits 2,60,19,686 2.60,19,686 71,81,000 71,81,000
{e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3,27,414 19,67,983 22,95,397 2,13,251 12,43,016 14,56,267
(f) Other non-current assets 3 4,55,70,875 | (2,25,06,095)] 2,30,64,780 95,35,712 (57,31,961) 38,03,751
{2) Current Assets
(a} Inventories 6,18,71,124 6,18,71,124 5,33,40,498 5,33,40,498
(b) Financial Assets
{i} Investments
(i} Trade receivables 17,51,16,801 17,51,16,801 7,29,25,853 7,29,29.853
{ili} Cash and cash equivalents 1,10,57,937 1,10,57,937 4,029 4,029
{iv) Other Bank Balances 1,56,94,500 1,56,94,500 23,59,712 23,59,712
{v) Loans and Advances 50,11,685 {1,26,613) 48,85,072 84,13,126 (53,63,075) 30,50,051
(wi) Other Financial assets 603,777 603,777 35,777 35,777
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 24,02,731 24,02,731
(d) Other current assets 3 3,40,49,445 (2,87,70,375) 52,79,070 93,998,161 (36,49,070) 57,49,091
Total 36,73,87,218 1,99,72,466 | 38,73,59,684 | 17,12,84,607 {15,81,870)| 16,97,02,737
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 2,99,76,840 2,99,76,840 2,06,09,080 2,06,09,080
() Other Equity 4 4,44,97 347 44,64, 768 4,89.62,116 1,44,34,057 {33,28,429) 1,11,05,628
Liabilities
{1) Non-Current Liabilities 5
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 2,76,71,865 29,64,811 3,06,36,676 1,49,71,885 18,21,158 1,67,93,043
(i1} Other Financial liabilities 1,98,36,329 1,98,36,329
(b} Provisions 56,82,489 56,82,489 24,778,784 24,78,734
(d) Other non-current liabilities
(2) Current Liabilities 5
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 10,71,13,858 10,71,13 858 5,54,78,421 5,54,78,421
(i) Other Financial liabilities 19,687,457 19,87,457 17,02,409 17,02,409
{ii) Borrowings 8,14,41,597 (6,22,71,888) 1,91,69,709 1,76,78,688 45,02,731 2,21,81,41%
(b} Other current liabilities 5,33,34,217 6,62,74,870 | 11,96,09,087 2,53,74,818 81,40,626 3,35,15,444
{¢) Provisions 2,3351,494 | (1,8966.371) 43,85.123 2,27.37,658 | (1,68,99,149) 58,38,509
{d) Current Tax Liabilities (net)
Total 36,73,87,218 1,99,72,466 | 38,73,59,684 | 17,12,84,607 (15,81,870)| 16,97,02,737

Q7

M h“




Reconciliation of total Equity as on March 31, 2018 and April 1, 2017:

(Amountin 7)

End of last
Do Date of
presented i
; transition
Particulars Notes under Previous
GAAP
As at iy
315;2:"’8":“’ 1st April, 2017
Total equity (Shareholder's funds) under previous GAAP 7,44,74,187 3,50,43,137
Adjustments:
Restatement on recognition date (33,28,429) (60,000)
Amortisation of Assets - Lease and Building 93,84,603
Recognition of Gratuity and Leave provision {11,38,338) (25,47,878)
Restatment of Prior ECB and other outstandings 11,40,155 (19,63,567)
Interest Recognition Finance lease and Interest free deposit Fair value (23,18,189)
Taxes on above adjustrments 7,24,967 (12,43,016)
Total adjustments to equity 44,64,769 (33,28,429)
Total equity under Ind AS 7,89,38,956 3,17,14,708
Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 {Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Notes Previous GAAP .Ind s As per Ind AS
Adjustments
Revenue from operations 6 47,57,08,252 12,88,839 | 47,69,97,091
Other income 57,99,301 11,18,435 69,17,736
Total income 48,15,07,553 24,07,274 | 48,39,14,827
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 9,39,68,639 12,88,839 95257478
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress 38,12,999 38,12,999
Empidyee Benefits Expense 7 13,96,84,635% 52,81,525 | 14,49,66,164
Finance Costs 1,05,59,134 20,71,331 1,26,30,465
Depreciation and amortization expense 46,94,143 44,27,147 91,21,2%0
Other Expenses 19,37,76,104 {1,21,58,481) 18,16,16,623
Total expenses 44,64,95,658 9,09,361 | 44,74,05,019
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and Tax 3,50,11,895 14,97,913 | 3,65,09,808
Exceptional Items 28,73,476 (20,50,063) 8,23,413
Profit before tax 3,21,38,419 35,47,976 3,56,86,395
Tax expense: 5
{a} Current tax relating to: =
- current year 94,06,789 94,06,789
earlier years 646,411 646,411
{b) Deferred tax {1,14,163) (12,80,536) (13,94,699)
Profit for the year 2,21,99,382 48,28,512 2,70,27,894
Other comprehensive income (OCl)
{a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement of the defined benefit plans 7 20,16,403 20,16,403
- tax impact (5,55,569) (5,55,569}
Total Other Comprehensive Income r 14,60,834 14,60,834
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,21,99,382 62,89,346 | 2,84,88,728
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018 {Amount in Rs.)

As at March 31 2018 (End of
Particulars Notes last period presented under
Previous GAAP)

Profit as per previous GAAP 2,21,99,382
Adjustments:

Exceptional - prior period {20,50,063)
Amortisation / Depreciation on Asset recognition and restatement (93,84,603)
Restatement of forex values - ECB 2,57,603
Interest on Lease recognition 20,71,331
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 52,81,525
Impact of taxes on above (12,80,536)
Total effect of transition to Ind AS (51,04,743)
Profit as per Ind AS 2,73,04,125
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) 14,60,834
Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS 2,87,64,959

Explanatory notes to reconciliation are as under:

1. Recognition of lease Assets and Finance lease:

Under Previous GAAP, land developments and costs related to usage of Assets thus created has been recognised as part of Assets and to be
amortised over the active period of lease and shown as part of Property, Plant and Equipment. As on the date March 31, 2018 an amount of Rs
92,41,750/- less 10,76,897/- has been recognised as per Ind AS.

Assets are classified under finance lease upon clarification for the Amount of Rs.2,23,35,000/- and amortaisation there on for Rs.33,50,250/-

2. Investments

Old investments relating to Amount given for tax registration purpoose have been derecignised due to impairment for the value of Rs. 60,000/-

3. Reclasification of Asset

Under previous GAAP Deposite were not amertised but were carried at cost as recelvable till maturity. Under Ind AS, Material Deposits have been
restated using the Effective Interest Rate Method. Accordingly, Deposit of Rs, 2,14,08,000/- is adjusted for and the difference of Rs. 2,46,858/- has
been effected in the current years profit. The balances have been restated for the current and non current period.

4. Prior period / exceptional items:

Under Previous GAAP, prior period items were reflected as part of current year expense or income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Under Ind
AS, material prior period items are adjusted to the period to which they relate and in case they relate to the period earlier than period presented,

these are adjusted against opening equity of the earliest period presented.

Rs.780876/- forex difference of ECB and Rs.1689780/- being the difference due to interest considered now far Ind AS purpose - Also being
llusted for Gratutly and Leave - opening provision balanaces of Rs.25,47,878/- has been adjusted against equity as on the transition date ie.

April 1, 2017

Accordingly, Rs1455796/- interest on ECB loan, Rs.765375/- Forex flucuation loss on ECB, Rs.359487/- gratuity provison, Rs.292818/- Leave

Provison, Rs.1080982/-Gratuity and Rs.422870/- Leave provision have been adjusted towards earlier period in effect to the retained earnings in

the has been adjusted against equity and resulting in the increase in profit before tax for the year ended March 31, 2018.

5. Liahilites :

Recognition / restatement of Balances for 780876 difference ECB and 1689780 Interest - forex differential Under previous GAAP the activity was
recorded post clarification and undertaking in RBI and the event captured in Ind AS . Also Non current - Gratuity Liability 21966032 and Leave
encashment Balance 282181/- along with Current Gratuity 58467 and Leave 10,627 /-portion recognised as per Ind AS 19 has been reflected as on
the transition date i.e. April 1, 2017, The same have been adjusted in the opening reatined earnings- the impact of the same is reduction in Equity
totalling Rs.45,11,445/-

Recognition / restatement of Balances for - ECB outstanding as current Liability, recognition of Liability towards Lease Assets outflows,and the
recognition of Liability per Ind AS 19 for Gratuity and Leave Balances - compared to ealier GAAP. with impact of Rs. 38633939

These adjustments have resulted in the increase in investments as at April 1, 2016 and March 31, 2017 and increase in equity and other income as
at April 1, 2016 and for the year ended March 31, 2017 respectively.

6. Excise Duty:

Under Previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of excise duty. Under Ind AS, revenue from sale of goods is
presented inclusive of excise duty and the excise duty paid is presented on the face of Statement of Profit and Loss as part of expenses.

This has resulted in an increase in total revenue and total expenses by Rs.1288839/- for the year ended March 31, 2018. This reclassification has no

impact on equity.




7. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans:

Under Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits, re-measurement i.e. actuarial gains and losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income instead of in
Profit before tax. Under the Previous GAAP, these re-measurement were forming part of Profit before tax for the year.
As a result, Aacturial gains due to change in financial assumptions and Acturial gains due to experience Adjustment 210144+1696070 Gratuity gains
32970+77219 Leave gainsctuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans amounting to ~ 58,85,316 (deferred tax impact ~ 20,36,790) have been
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Accordingly re-measurement loss for 2016-17 amounting to ~ 58,85,316 has been adjusted from
Employee Cost resulting in corresponding increase in Net Profit after tax. This reclassification has no impact on equity.

49 The Financial Statements of the company have been approved by the board of directors on 20th May 2019.

For VCA & Associates INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD

Chartered Accoungants For and on behalf of the Board
FRN:114414W A I

] /
PO i /‘Tf

Binayak Rath P L Sathinarayanan
Director Director
DIN: 02784819 DIN: 02852765

Place : Vadodara
Date : 20th May 2019

Place : Vadodara
Date : 20th May 2019




